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Date:   August 17, 2017 

To:   All bidders 
Title:   Insurance and Risk Management Services  

Reference No.:  2017-RFP-29 

From:   Jeff Mulligan, Manager of Purchasing Services, ext. 3343 

 
Note: 
Niagara Region has determined that it is necessary to provide additional information 
relating to the above referenced Request for Proposal. 
 
This addendum forms an integral part of the above referenced Request for Proposal.  
Such addenda may contain important information, including significant changes to the 
above referenced Request for Proposal. 
 
In the Form of Proposal (Appendix B), bidders should confirm their receipt of all 
addenda by setting out the number of each addendum in the space provided. 

Addendum No. 3 

Questions and Answers 

1. Please reconsider extending the closing date by even one (1) week to give us 
sufficient time to survey the insurance marketplace and obtain the best possible 
terms and premiums for the Region.  As you know, this is vacation time for 
everyone and with just over three weeks to underwrite such a large risk, this is an 
extremely difficult task to complete by everyone with the exception of the 
incumbent provider. 

Answer:  Please see Addendum 1, Question and Answer item no. 1. 

2. Is it acceptable to the Region for a Proponent to pick and choose which Options 
they wish to provide a quote on?  In other words, if a Proponent chose to quote 
options 1 and 2 only; would their submission be accepted or rejected for 
evaluation? 
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Answer: As stated in the RFP, Part 1 under Form C and Form E as well as Appendix D 
under section A and section E, proponents are required to bid on all three Options.  For 
confirmation please refer to pages 11, 53, 56 and 57 of 85.  

3. Does the Region use contractors for snow clearing; please advise what level of 
separate insurance they are required to carry? 

Answer:  Niagara Region does use contractors for snow clearing for parking lots etc. as 
well as winter road maintenance for certain Niagara Region roads.  Niagara Region’s 
previous standard requirement for parking lot maintenance was $2M CGL/$2M Auto.  
We have since increased our limits to $5M CGL/$2M Auto for any new contracts.  
Current winter road maintenance contract requirements are $5M CGL/$5M Auto/$5M 
Environmental/$2M Professional Liability. 

4. Please advise if the Region operates all of its water treatment plants and sewage 
treatment plants or if any of them are operated by a third party (e.g. OCWA).  

Answer:  Niagara Region operates all of its own water and sewage treatment plants.  
None are operated by third parties.  

5. Does Council travel overseas and/ or out of province?  If yes, is the coverage to 
be extended for this travel? 

Answer:  Council on occasion is required to travel out of province/overseas for 
business purposes and current coverage does not exclude such travel and provides 
coverage “While on Duty”.  See RFP page 71 of 85. 

6. Please confirm if there have been any claims under these Accident policies in the 
past five years.  If yes, then please provide dates and details of the same. 

Answer:  Pursuant to Appendix M – Loss History, provided with the RFP, there have 
been no claims in the past five years that we are aware of. 

7. Does the Region have any unlicensed equipment (i.e. Road Building machines) 
which will require licencing as a result of the MTO’s new and expanded definition 
of a commercial motor vehicle?  If yes, please identify. 

Answer:  Refer to Addendum 2, Question and Answer item no. 6. 
 

8. Please provide a copy of the CVOR abstracts applicable to all of the Heavy 
Commercial vehicles. 

Answer:  The CVOR is not available.  Niagara Region will explore this further with the 
successful proponent.  
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9. Does the Region currently have any arrangements or agreements with 
neighbouring municipalities to share its vehicles (with or without a driver)? 

Answer:  To the best of our knowledge, the are no such arrangements or agreements. 
 

10. Please provide a number count of all motorized vehicles and trailers applicable to 
the Region’s fleet for the past five years. 

Answer:  The size of automobile fleet by category has not materially changed over the 
past five years. Please refer to all Fleet Schedules in Appendix K to the RFP. 

 
11. Are any vehicles used to transport people (e.g. Long term care or Child Care, 

etc.)?  If yes, please identify the vehicles used as well as the seating capacity for 
each and the corresponding use/radius of each. 

Answer:  Niagara Region does not use its owned vehicles to transport residents from 
Long Term Care facilities or children in Child Care facilities.  We presume you are 
excluding EMS and NRP vehicles from your query. 

 
12. Are all vehicles and trailers on the fleet schedule plated for road use?  

Answer:  Refer to Appendix K i to the RFP for licensed vehicles and trailers.  Niagara 
Region licenses all vehicles between unit numbers 100 through to 599, and 1000 
through to 3999.  Niagara Region also licenses all trailers listed between unit numbers 
600 through to 999. 

 
13. Do any vehicles have an airside/tarmac exposure? If so, which vehicles have this 

exposure and how common is this exposure? 

Answer: To the best of our knowledge, there is no such exposure. 
 

14. Please provide a history of deductibles for each line of coverage under the Auto 
policy that applied during the corresponding policy year for each year that claims 
have been provided. 

Answer: For the past five years, the deductibles have not changed.  See RFP page 80 
and 81 of 85 for the list of deductibles. 

 
15. Upon review of the Automobile claims history, there has been a substantial 

reduction in recorded claims (non-DCPD) as follows; 2012 non-DCPD claims = 
89, 2013 non-DCPD claims = 90, 2014 non-DCPD claims = 15, 2016 non-DCPD 
claims = 13, 2016 non-DCPD claims = 6. Please explain why? 

Answer: In late 2015, Legal Services changed its fleet claim reporting policy threshold 
for opening non-DCPD claims.  We do not open any automobile claims in our system 
that are under $5,000 and do not involve a third party or bodily injury. 
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16. Is there an existing claims handling agreement with your adjuster?  If yes, can 

you please provide a copy of the same? 

Answer:  Niagara Region does not have a written claims handling agreement with our 
adjuster. 

17. Requested auto endorsement questions:  

a. identify the exposure applicable to the request for the following 
endorsements: OPCF 4A, 4B, 5C, 5D, 19, 19A & 32; 

b. the submission requests OPCF 22 coverage but the accompanying OPCF 
6C has not been requested. Why? 

c. is an OPCF 6A or 6C not required for any reported vehicle including 
ambulances? 

d. can you confirm what is meant by the request for the ‘Equipment 
Endorsement’ as found on page 81 of 85 of the RFP? 

Answer:  Overall the automobile insurance coverage is enhanced with all 
endorsements for the benefit of Niagara Region regardless of exposures.  Options 
proposed may be considered within the RFP process. 

18. What is the average vacancy rate for NRH? 

Answer:  Other than an average turnover time of 2 weeks, there are no vacancies.  See 
RFP page 5 of 85 for NRH website for wait time details. 
 

19. Can you provide additional details on NRH property losses (especially the two 
larger fire claims)? 

Answer: Details of NRH property losses have been provided in Appendix M – Loss 
Run.  Additional details of the two larger fire claims are as follows: 

• Claim no. 2013.0070, DOL: April 30, 2013, accidental fire caused by tenant 
leaving laundry basket on the stove; smoke detectors working at time of incident. 
Claim costs totaled $49,349.28 before NRH deductible.  Tenant did not have 
insurance.  Claim closed on January 28, 2014; and   

• Claim no. 2013.0152, DOL: July 28, 2013; accidental fire allegedly caused by a 
minor child in the sleeping area but cause undetermined by City of St. Catharines 
Fire Department; working smoke detectors had been allegedly disconnected by 
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tenant’s sibling; claim costs totaled $90,933.60 before NRH deductible. Tenant 
did not have insurance. Claim closed on November 27, 2014. 

cc: File, as referenced above. 
 Project Manager:  Donna Pasto 

 
End of Addendum 
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